
 
 

 
eastsussex.gov.uk 

LEAD MEMBER FOR ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH 
 
DECISIONS   to be made by the Lead Member for Adult Social Care and Health, 
Councillor Carl Maynard 
 
TUESDAY, 9 NOVEMBER 2021 AT 11AM OR AT THE CONCLUSION OF THE GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE, WHICHEVER IS THE LATER  
 
COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNTY HALL, LEWES 
 
AGENDA 
 
 
1.   Decisions made by the Lead Member on 21 September 2021  (Pages 3 - 6) 

 
2.   Disclosure of interests   

Disclosure by all Members present of personal interests in matters on the agenda, the 
nature of any interest and whether the Members regard the interest as prejudicial under 
the terms of the Code of Conduct. 

 
3.   Urgent items   

Notification of any items which the Lead Member considers urgent and proposes to take 
at the appropriate part of the agenda. 

 
4.   Household Support Fund  (Pages 7 - 10) 

 
5.   Any urgent items previously notified under agenda item 3   

 
 
 
 
PHILIP BAKER 
Assistant Chief Executive   
County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent 
LEWES BN7 1UE 1 November 2021 
 
Contact Aaron Sams, Democratic Services Officer, 01273 335274,  
 
Email: aaron.sams@eastsussex.gov.uk  
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 

LEAD MEMBER FOR ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH 
 
DECISIONS made by the Lead Member for Adult Social Care and Health, Councillor Carl 
Maynard, on 21 September 2021 at County Hall, Lewes  
 
++Please note that the Lead Member attended the meeting remotely++ 
 

 
Councillors Adeniji, Maples and Ungar  spoke on item 4 (see minute 24); Councillor Maples and 
Ungar spoke on item 5 (see minute 25) and Cllr Lunn sent representations as the local member 
on item 5 (see minute 25). 
 
 
21 DECISIONS MADE BY THE LEAD MEMBER ON 16TH AUGUST 2021  
 
21.1 The decisions made by the Lead Member on 16th August 2021 were agreed as a correct 
record subject to the addition of a note that Cllr Ungar submitted representations for items 4 and 
5. 
 
22 DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS  
 
22.1 There were no disclosures of interest. 
 
23 URGENT ITEMS  
 
23.1 There were no urgent items. 
 
 
24 RESIDENTIAL AND NURSING CARE CONTRACTS  

24.1 The Lead Member considered a report seeking agreement to consult with independent 
sector care providers and amend the Terms and Conditions for the Framework Contract 
following the outcome of the consultation. 

24.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to: 

1. Agree to consult with independent sector care providers from October-December 
2021 in respect of amendments to the terms and conditions for the Residential and 
Nursing Care Framework Contract Agreement as set out in paragraph 2.1-2.7; and 

2. Delegate authority to the Director of Adult Social Care to amend the terms and 
conditions, following consultation with care providers, and take all necessary actions to 
give effect to their implementation by March 2022.  

Reason 

24.3 Clear, concise and current terms and conditions are a key element to a positive 
contractual relationship with the Councils’ independent sector providers of residential and 
nursing care; as well as ensuring the delivery of high quality, safe and effective personalised 
services. 

24.4 The proposed amendments to the current terms and conditions are necessary to reflect 

recent changes in legislation and best practice as well as incorporating the collective lessons 

learnt throughout the Covid-19 pandemic. 

 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 
 
 

 

25 SERVICE MODEL FOR DIRECTLY PROVIDED LEARNING DISABILITY DAY 
SERVICES  

25.1 The Lead Member considered a report seeking agreement to make permanent changes 

to the service model for the Council’s Directly Provided Learning Disability Day Services, 

following a comprehensive consultation process. 

25.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to: 

1.  Agree to the permanent change to Service Model for Directly Provided Learning 

Disability Day Services with effect from 18th October 2021, specifically to provide: 

• the service across three sessions per day, rather than as whole days.  

• the service in ‘support bubbles’ of up to 15 clients. 

• sessions based in the community that are independent of the building-based 
service;  

2.  Delegate authority to the Director of Adult Social Care to take all necessary actions to 

give effect to the implementation of the revised model of delivery; 

3. note the summary of the outcome of the staff consultation (Appendix 1); 

4. note the summary of the stakeholder consultation (Appendix 2); 

5. note the report by POhWER, an independent advocacy service, as part of the 

consultation process (Appendix 3); and 

6. note the summary of the Equality Impact Assessment (Appendix 4).  

Reason 

25.3 Making the current changes to the service model for the Council’s Directly Provided  

Learning Disability Day Services permanent will improve the service offered to clients and 

parent carers by providing a broader range of options, hours of delivery and locations.  Whilst 

the vast majority of clients, parent carers and staff are supportive of the service model which 

has effectively been in place for over a year, support will be provided to those who find this 

change challenging.  

26 RE-PROCUREMENT OF SPECIALIST SEXUAL HEALTH SERVICES  

26.1 The Lead Member considered a report seeking approval for the proposed service model 

changes for the new specialist sexual health service that will launch 1st October 2022. 

26.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to: 

1. Approve the proposed changes for the new service model for the specialist sexual health 
service set out in paragraph 2.6 that will launch on 1st October 2022 following a 
procurement process;  

2. Delegate authority to the Director of Public Health to take all necessary actions to give 
effect to the implementation of the revised model of delivery; 

3. Note the summary of the Equality Impact Assessment (Appendix 1); and 

4. Note the consultation comments on proposed changes to the new specialist sexual 
health service model (Appendix 2) 

Page 4



 
 
 

 

Reason 

26.3 The proposed changes to the new service model builds on accepted innovations and 

developments within the specialist sexual health service. This includes the increasing use of 
online service provision and changes to the way patients access services due to the impact of 
COVID-19 restrictions. The new service model will increase access for residents in all parts of 
the county with sufficient mitigation through outreach teams and working with other services to 
develop clear pathways and a simple service to cater for disadvantaged groups.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Lead Member for Adult Social Care and Health   
 

Date of meeting: 
 

9 November 2021 

By: Director of Adult Social Care 

Title: Household Support Fund 

Purpose: To note the Council’s allocation from the Household Support Fund 
(“the Fund”) and agree the development of the scheme to distribute 
grant funding as set out in the report.  

 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Lead Member is recommended to approve the proposed use of a proportion of the 
Household Support Fund and to delegate to the Director of Adult Social Care authority to 
implement the scheme.  

 

1 Background 

1.1 On 6 October 2021 the government announced the Household Support Fund (“the Fund”) 
to support those most in need this winter. The Fund runs from 6 October 2021 to 31 March 2022. 
East Sussex County Council has been allocated £3,896,783 grant funding from it. 

1.2 More information about the Fund is expected, but the government has set out how the Fund 
should be allocated according to the following criteria: at least 50% of the total funding must be 
spent on families with children. In terms of type of support, the expectation is that [the Fund] should 
primarily be used to support households in the most need with food, energy, and water bills. It can 
also be used to support households with essential costs related to those items and with wider 
essential costs. In exceptional cases of genuine emergency, it can additionally be used to support 
housing costs where existing housing support schemes do not meet this exceptional need. Further 
information can be found on the government website at: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/government-launches-500m-support-for-vulnerable-
households-over-winter 
 

1.3 The Fund is similar to the Winter Covid Fund Support Grant and the Covid Local Support 
Fund Grant that were provided to local authorities between December 2020 and the end of 
September 2021. However, the eligibility criteria for the spending of this grant are more flexible: 
with more of the Fund being able to be provided to individual adults in households (as opposed to 
families with children) and funding for ‘wider essentials’ now included. 

 

2 Supporting information 

2.1 The Council is proposing that the Fund is distributed to households in need in a number of 
ways, creating a multi-faceted approach that aims to provide support to a wide variety of 
households. As with previous grant schemes the aim is to utilise existing processes and structures 
as much as possible to both reduce administration costs but also ensure the tight timelines are 
met.  

2.2 This report focuses on work with the Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise 
organisations (“VCSE organisations”) and District and Borough Councils. A separate report is 
being taken to the Lead Member for Children’s Services on15 November 2021. This proposes 
utilising a proportion of the funding to provide food vouchers to eligible free school meal pupils 
between December 2021 – March 2022. Additionally, that report also seeks approval to directly 
distribute some of the Fund to vulnerable families and children via Children’s Services teams that 
work with this cohort. This includes young people who are ‘care leavers’, families supported by 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/government-launches-500m-support-for-vulnerable-households-over-winter
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/government-launches-500m-support-for-vulnerable-households-over-winter


social care teams, and those with no recourse to public funds. This would leave circa £1.9 million 
to be distrusted through VCSE organisations and District and Borough Councils.  

2.3 As noted above the Fund is similar in nature to previous short-term Government grants that 
have been provided during the last 18 months. The Council has been able to collaborate with a 
wide range of VCSE organisations to ensure the funding has been provided to appropriate 
individuals and groups at pace. VCSE organisations are adept at working with vulnerable people, 
who are often not known to statutory services, and can distribute funding rapidly. The model of joint 
working proved successful for the COVID Winter Support Grant.  

2.4  The Council has written to all District and Borough Councils, major VCSE organisations 
including the Voluntary Actions and Social Housing Providers. Follow up conversations are on-
going.  

2.5  East Sussex County Council has received over £1million in offers of assistance as to how 
the Fund could best reach residents in need from the VCSE. These are being considered for 
eligibility, quality and whether they can be delivered on time. This will also include an assessment 
that there is a consistent geographic spread across the county as well as reaching people from all 
the protected characteristics most in need.  

2.6 By way of example, the types of suggested use of the funding include support to food 
banks, local food pantries/fridges, warm home initiatives, fuel vouchers, support for utility bills and 
white goods.  

2.7 Work is underway with all District and Borough Councils to develop and implement a 
Discretionary Support Scheme. This would look to allow residents in cases of extreme hardship to 
apply for funding to meet a range of household bills. The principles of a scheme are being agreed, 
the detailed work as to how to implement it is a priority. At the point of drafting this report it is 
expected that this would include an application process.  

2.8  Reporting, as for all expenditure within the Fund, would have to meet Government 
requirements. An officer working group with representation from all District and Borough Councils 
alongside the Council has been established to lead this element of the project.  

2.9 Experience gained from the last few grants given with tight timelines for development and 
implementation have highlighted the need for flexibility as to how the scheme operates. The time 
available to develop proposals means that there is always a need to tweak allocations and be 
realistic as to what organisations can achieve. As such all funding provided to partners is provided 
with clawback mechanisms based on a timetable of allocations to ensure the funding reaches East 
Sussex residents and isn’t returned to Government.  

2.10  As with the previous COVID Winter Grant, organisations are able to recoup reasonable 
administration fees for the delivery of this scheme. All organisations are made aware of this and 
where necessary this is reported within returns to Government.  

2.11 To ensure delivery of the scheme by the end of March 2022 an officer working group 
consisting of officers from the Councils Adult Social Care & Health and Children’s Services has 
been formed. This group also coordinated the previous COVID Winter Grant Scheme.  

2.12 An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) of the scheme in its entirety is being carried out, 
which will ensure that the full range of funding meets the Council’s equality duties. At this stage, 
any negative impacts arising from the proposed administration of the Fund are yet to be identified. 
We are working to ensure that we are able to collect better demographic data about the 
beneficiaries during the rollout of this scheme. The full EIA can only be completed once the final 
scheme has been constructed.  

3. Conclusion and reasons for recommendations  

3.1 The Fund provides an opportunity to support East Sussex families and individuals who are 
experiencing financial challenges.  

3.2 The creation of a multi-faceted scheme working with VCSE organisations and District and 
Borough Councils allows the Council to support residents in a targeted manner, supporting 

Page 8



residents not in contact with statutory agencies and the discretionary element creates an additional 
safety net for residents who may not already receiving support.  

3.3 The timetable for implementation necessities broad delegation to be provided to the 
Director of Adult Social Care to finalise, implement and adjust the scheme as necessary.  

 

MARK STAINTON 

Director of Adult Social Care 

 

 

Contact 
 
Tom Hook - Assistant Director, Planning, Performance and Engagement  
Email: tom.hook@eastsussex.gov.uk 
Tel: 01273 335340 

 

 

 

 

Page 9

mailto:tom.hook@eastsussex.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Decisions made by the Lead Member on 21 September 2021
	4 Household Support Fund

